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Date: Thursday 13th September  2018 at 10am 
 

Venue: Cavendish House, Teesdale Business Park, Stockton-On-Tees,  
TS17 6QY 

 
Membership: 
 
Cllr Norma Stephenson OBE - Chair (Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council) 
Cllr Ian Haszeldine – Vice Chair (Darlington Borough Council) 
Cllr Heather Scott (Darlington Borough Council) 
Cllr Sonia Kane (Darlington Borough Council) 
Cllr Stephen Akers-Belcher (Hartlepool Borough Council) 
Cllr Mike McLaughlin (Hartlepool Borough Council) 
Cllr Rob Cook (Hartlepool Borough Council) 
Cllr Vic Walkington (Middlesbrough Council) 
Cllr Matthew Storey (Middlesbrough Council) 
Cllr Jean Sharrocks (Middlesbrough Council) 
Cllr Glyn Nightingale (Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council) 
Cllr Neil O’Brien (Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council) 
Cllr Philip Thomson (Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council) 
Cllr Derrick Brown (Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council) 
Cllr Matt Vickers (Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council) 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. 
 

Declarations of interest 

3. 
 
 
 

Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 19th July 2018 for confirmation 
and signature 
 

4. 
 

Portfolio update: Mayor David Budd (Culture, Tourism and Innovation) 
 
Attached 
 

5. Update: Overview and Scrutiny Diversity Study  
 

6. Update: Budget Sub-Committee 
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6. 
 

Announcements from the Interim Managing Director 
 

7. 
 
 
 
8. 

Forward Plan 
 
Attached 
 
Date of the next Meeting 
 
25th October 2018 at 10.00am – Cavendish House, Stockton-On-Tees,  
TS17 6QY 
 

Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
  
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting and/or 
have access to the agenda papers. 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting or for details of access to the meeting for 
disabled people please contact: Sarah Brackenborough – 01642 524423 – 
sarah.brackenborough@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk 
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Tees Valley Combined Authority Declaration of Interests Procedures 
 
 
1. The purpose of this note is to provide advice and guidance to all members (the Mayor, 

elected and co-opted members, substitute members and associate members) of the 
Combined Authority Cabinet, Sub-Committees and Local Enterprise Partnership Board, 
on the procedure for declaring interests. The procedure is set out in full in the Combined 
Authority’s Constitution under the “Code of Conduct for Members” (Appendix 8). 

 
Personal Interests 
 
2. The Code of Conduct sets out in full, the principles on the general conduct of members 

in their capacity at the Combined Authority. As a general principle, members should act 
impartially and should not use their position at the Combined Authority to further their 
personal or private interests.  

 
3. There are two types of personal interests covered by the constitution: 

 
a.  “disclosable pecuniary interests”. In general, a disclosable pecuniary interest will 

involve any financial interests, such as paid employment or membership of a 
body, interests in contracts, or ownership of land or shares.  Members have a 
pecuniary interest in a matter where there is a reasonable likelihood or 
expectation that the business to be considered will affect your well-being or 
financial position, or the well-being or financial position of the following persons: 

i. a member of your family; 
ii. any person with whom you have a close association; 
iii. in relation to a) and b) above, their employer, any firm in which they are a 

partner, or a company of which they are a director; 
iv. any person or body in whom persons described in a) and b) above have a 

beneficial interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of 
£25,000; or 

v. any body as described in paragraph 3 b) i) and ii) below. 
 

b. Any other personal interests. You have a personal interest in any business of the 
Combined Authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 

i. any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general 
control or management) and to which you are appointed or 
nominated by the Combined Authority; 

ii. any body which: 
 exercises functions of a public nature;  
 is directed to charitable purposes;  
 one of whose principle purposes includes influencing public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 
of which you are a member (or in a position of general 
control or management).  

 
 

https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/TVCA-Constitution-Document-2017.pdf
https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/TVCA-Constitution-Document-2017.pdf
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Declarations of interest relating to the Councils’ commercial role 
 
4. The constituent councils of the Combined Authority are closely integrated with its 

governance and financial arrangements, and financial relationships between the 
Combined Authority and Councils do not in themselves create a conflict of interest for 
Council Leaders who are also Combined Authority Cabinet members.  Nor is it a conflict 
of interest if the Combined Authority supports activities within a particular council 
boundary.  Nevertheless, there are specific circumstances where the Cabinet is 
considering entering into direct contractual arrangements with a council, for example in 
relation to a particular commercial investment project, or in which that council is a co-
funder.  In these circumstances a non-pecuniary declaration of interest should be made 
by the Council Leader or their substitute.   

 
Procedures for Declaring Interests 
 
5. In line with the Code of Conduct, members are required to adhere to the following 

procedures for declaring interests: 
 
Register of Interests 
 
6. Each member is required to complete a register of interests form with their personal 

interests, within 28 days of their appointment to the Combined Authority. Details of any 
personal interests registered will be published on the Combined Authority’s website, with 
the full register available at the Combined Authority’s offices for public inspection. The 
form will be updated on an annual basis but it is the responsibility of each member to 
notify the Monitoring Officer of any changes to the register throughout the year. 
Notification of a change must be made to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
becoming aware of that change.  

 
Declaration of Interests at Meetings 
 
7. The Combined Authority will include a standing item at the start of each meeting for 

declaration of interests. Where members are aware that any of their personal interests 
are relevant to an item of business being considered at a meeting they are attending, 
they must declare that interest either during the standing item on the agenda, at the start 
of the consideration of the item of business, or when the interest becomes apparent, if 
later.  

 
8. Where members consider that their interest could be considered by the public as so 

significant that it is likely to prejudice the members’ judgement then they may not 
participate in any discussion and voting on the matter at the meeting, but may attend the 
meeting to make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating to the 
business, before it is discussed and voted upon.  

 
9. If the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest (as summarised in paragraph 3a) then 

the member must leave the meeting room during discussion and voting on the item of 
business, but may make representations, give evidence and answer questions before 
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leaving the meeting room. Failure to comply with the requirements in relation to 
disclosable pecuniary interests is a criminal offence. 

 
Sensitive Information  
 
10. Members can seek the advice of the monitoring officer if they consider that the 

disclosure of their personal interests contains sensitive information.  
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Minutes 

These minutes are in draft form until approved at the next Committee meeting and are therefore 
subject to amendments. 

 
TEES VALLEY COMBINED AUTHORITY  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Cavendish House, Stockton-On-Tees, TS17 6QY 
Thursday 19th July 2018 at 2.00pm 

 MEETING 

ATTENDEES   

Members   
Cllr Norma Stephenson OBE Stockton on Tees Borough Council SBC 
Cllr Derrick Brown Stockton on Tees Borough Council SBC 
Cllr Matt Vickers Stockton on Tees Borough Council SBC 
Cllr Ian Haszeldine Darlington Borough Council DBC 
Cllr Heather Scott OBE Darlington Borough Council  DBC 
Cllr Sonia Kane Darlington Borough Council DBC 
Cllr Matthew Storey Middleborough Borough Council  MBC 
Cllr Vic Walkington Middleborough Borough Council MBC 
Cllr Glyn Nightingale Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council R&CBC 
Cllr Phillip Thompson Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council  R&CBC 
Cllr Mike McLaughlin  Hartlepool Borough Council HBC 
                      
 
Apologies for absence 
Cllr Stephen Akers-Belcher               

                                                               

                                                                  
Hartlepool Borough Council                

   

                
HBC                                             

Cllr Rob Cook Hartlepool Borough Council HBC 
Cllr Jean Sharrocks             Middlesbrough Borough Council       MBC 
   
 
Officers 

  

John Hart Governance & Scrutiny Officer TVCA 
Julie Gilhespie Interim Managing Director  TVCA 
Craig Peacock Marketing Manager TVCA 
Linda Edworthy Strategy Director TVCA 
   
 
Other Attendees 
 

  

Mayor Ben Houchen Tees Valley Mayor TVCA 
Joan Stevens Scrutiny Officer HBC 
Cameron Brown Special Advisor to the Mayor TVCA 
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OSC 
10/18 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for interest were received from Councillors Ackers-Belcher, 
Cook and Sharrocks.  
 

 

OSC 
11/18 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no interests declared 
 

 

OSC 
12/18 

MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting on 7th June 2018 were agreed and signed 
as a correct record.  

John Hart, Governance and Scrutiny Officer, updated members on 
matters arising from the previous meeting, including: 

 An update on minutes of the Educational Improvement Board, 
which are still awaiting clearance from the Department of 
Education. 

 The appointment of Tees Valley Combined Authority Head of 
Housing & Communities Martin Waters as Interim Head of 
Finance pending the appointment of a new permanent 
Managing Director.  

 

OSC 
13/18 

PORTFOLIO UPDATE: MAYOR BEN HOUCHEN 
 
The Mayor of the Tees Valley provided members with a verbal update 
of his recent activities, including: 

 Trains: The Mayor described investment in Darlington Station 
as a “priority”, with a business case for funding currently being 
assessed by the Department for Transport. He stated his belief 
that the Combined Authority should allocate in the region of 
£25m from the Transforming Cities Fund to the project with the 
aspiration of increasing capacity on the East Coast Mainline 
and allowing 8 trains an hour to run between Saltburn and 
Darlington. The Mayor also updated members that £2.5m of 
Combined Authority funding had been committed to 
improvements at Middleborough Station which had been 
matched with £2m of funding from Network Rail. 

 Roads: Business Cases are currently being considered by the 
Department for Transport for a new Tees Crossing and a new 
Darlington Link Road.  

 Buses: A feasibility study has been commissioned into bus 
franchising, with the Mayor lobbying bus companies for 
enhanced services as a “short term solution”. 

 South Tees Development Corporation: The Mayor announced 
that he would next week be meeting with the Chancellor of the 
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Exchequer to discuss the Business Case for the site. He 
reported that more than 100 investors had now expressed an 
interest in the site. 

 Durham Tees Valley Airport: The Mayor updated the committee 
that negotiations were continuing with Peel Holdings and a third 
party, but Non-Disclosure Agreements prevented him from 
going into further details at this time.  

 Investment: The Mayor reported that since his election the 
Combined Authority had successfully secured £210m of 
investment from HM Government in addition to funding secured 
through the Tees Valley devolution deal. 

 
The Chair asked the Mayor if all railway stations in the Tees Valley 
were being evaluated for investment, particular investment which would 
enhance the accessibility of these stations to those with restricted 
mobility. The Mayor stated that he recognised the importance of these 
stations and increasing accessibility, but also the need to focus initially 
on “huge transformational hubs”.  
 
Cllr Thompson asked the Mayor how he would ensure that the 
infrastructure of the SDTC Site area was appropriate for the envisaged 
development. The Mayor started that this was set out on the Site 
Masterplan. 
 
Cllr Scott requested that the Mayor update the Committee on how 
agreement in principle had been reached with the Thai Banks with 
regards to legal control of the former SSI site. The Mayor stated that 
this had been a complex process during which he had been grateful for 
the support of the Chancellor of the Exchequer, and that he hoped that 
legal control of the site would be secured by the end of the year. 
 
Cllr McLaughlin asked the Mayor to provide the committee with his 
thoughts on the “Chequers deal”, the government’s recently announced 
Brexit proposals, and in particular the potential impact on plans for the 
creation of a Freeport on Teesside. The Mayor stated his belief that a 
Freeport on the model currently being envisaged would not be possible 
within the Single Market or a Customs Union, but that the government’s 
White Paper was “not detailed enough” on this matter and subject to 
significant change as a result of negotiations with the European Union. 
Cllr McLaughlin asked if the Mayor was aware of any businesses 
threatening to leave the Tees Valley following Brexit. The Mayor stated 
that he was not.  
 
Cllr Storey asked the Mayor to comment on a recent report from the 
Northern Housing Consortium which stated that the development of a 
new Garden Village would be “unnecessary” on the basis of existing 
land allocation. The Mayor stated that he had not seen the research but 
that in his view the allocation of land for housing does not necessarily 
mean that a housing development would be viable on the land.   
 
The Vice Chair requested that legal advice provided to the Mayor with 
regards to the ownership of Durham Tees Valley Airport me made 
available to the committee. The Mayor undertook to seek guidance on 
this matter.  
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The Vice Chair asked the Mayor what support could be offered to Tees 
Valley town centres in light of recent retail closures. The Mayor stated 
that it was the responsible of individual authorities to bring forward 
“transformative plans” but that the Combined Authority would add value 
where possible.  
    
Cllr Storey asked the Mayor to update the committee on his efforts to 
secure protected status for the Parmo. The Mayor stated that work was 
progressing as this was a pledge he was elected on.    
 

OSC 
14/18 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY STUDY: DIVERSITY IN THE TEES 
VALLEY COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
John Hart, Governance and Scrutiny Officer updated members on the 
proposed methodology for the study and the result of initial 
investigations. Member agreed to progress with the study as outlined. 
 

 

OSC 
15/18 

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE INTERIM MANAGING DIRECTOR 
 
Julie Gilhespie, Interim Managing Director, updated members on: 

 The completion of the Combined Authority’s Annual Financial 
Statements, to be completed by 31st of July 2018. 

 The commencement of a Strategic Prioritisation Exercise 
between the Combined Authority and its Constituent Local 
Authorities. 

 Progress of the devolution of the Adult Education Budget to the 
Combined Authority. Committee members requested that they 
be provided with any papers relating to this work being 
presented to the Tees Valley Cabinet.  

 
Cllr Kane asked the Interim Managing Director is she could update the 
committee on the process recruitment of a permanent Managing 
Director. Julie Gilhespie stated that as a potential applicant she was not 
party to these decisions.  
 

 

OSC 
16/18 

FORWARD PLAN 
 
A verbal update about pre-planned committee appearances from 
portfolio holders for the coming civic year was provided by John Hart, 
Governance and Scrutiny Officer.  
 
The Vice Chair updated the Committee on furture plans for scrutiny of 
the Combined Authority’s budget and expenses to be carried out by a 
Task and Finish group, with operational arrangements to be formalised 
at a meeting between himself and officers on the 21st of August 2018. 
 

 

OSC 
17/18 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
13th September 2018 at 10.00am   

 

 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Portfolio Update: Mayor David Budd 
(Culture, Tourism and Innovation) 

 

Investment and Funding Approval 

We are currently working on developing a Culture Strategy and funding approval framework 
based on our five key priority work areas:  

• Growing, Retaining and Attracting Talent;  
• Inspiring, Supporting and Celebrating Children and Young People;  
• Strengthening Wellbeing, Happiness & Inclusion;  
• Shaping Characterful Places Powered By Proud Communities;  
• Contributing to a Creative, Innovative & Resilient Economy. 

There will be a two stage process of application with an initial assessment of Expression of 
Interests, followed by a detailed assessment of a project’s ability to meet more detailed 
criteria based on the project’s ability to meet our overall objectives for Tees Valley and 
economic objectives. 

The current allocation of funding approved by cabinet for culture is fully spent and, in 
November, we will submit a further paper to cabinet requesting funding for Capacity Building 
and our City of Culture Development work. 

Going forward, this update will focus on projects approved and in delivery, including capital 
projects underway. 

City of Culture  

We are working towards a large-scale, Tees Valley-wide engagement programme - The Big 
Conversation - which will ensure that the aspirations, ideas, values and stories of our 
communities are at the heart of the bid.  Focus Groups are being established to guide a 
‘pilot’ phase of activity, intended to identify appropriate means of generating rich responses, 
which will inform the wider engagement programme.   

Focus groups have already taken place to determine the approach to target groups such as 
children and young people, vulnerable and diverse communities, large and small workplaces 
and public spaces with representatives from each area of interest, artists and local authority 
representatives.  

‘Big Conversation’ pilots will take place from September to November 2018, followed by 18 
months of Big Conversation activity across our communities, schools, work places and 
public spaces in preparation for our City of Culture bid April 2021. 

Culture Development Fund 

We have collaborated with the local authorities and the culture sector, to develop a 
transformative Tees Valley-wide bid. There was very strong support for a Tees Valley bid to 
focus on Film and associated Digital with plans to develop film studios and a Centre for 
Excellence in Creative Arts in Hartlepool, building on existing strengths  

An EOI was submitted to Arts Council England on 15th August 2018 to apply for £3.4 million 
to help build film studios in Hartlepool and develop film making and digital sector content 
development skills, with £1.4 million of match funding offered (had to be approx. 30% and 
include some private sector funding). 



Festival of Thrift at Kirkleatham: Sept 22nd – Sept 23rd   

Final preparations for are taking place. TVCA has supported the festival and also, in order to 
develop the four artists commissions responding to ideas around sustainability and thrift 
have been put in place in Middlesbrough (Ian Kirkpatrick to view his work Crossroads) and 
Hartlepool (Lee Berwick and Rob Olins, to experience the Sonic Anomaly installation) with 
two roaming pieces of work travelling throughout Tees Valley to help spread the ideas which 
underpin the Festival itself. Andy Hazell with the Cow-car and Lucien Anderson and David 
Lisser and the Seed-bike. 

Periplum - Glass Ceiling  

Periplum are working with people in each of the five boroughs researching important 
Suffragette women of each area and preparing large scale public performances with local 
residents. The first of these was part of SIRF on 3rd and 4th August in Stockton. The next 
performances are: Darlington Market Place 7th Sept; Redcar, Kirkleatham 5th Oct; 
Hartlepool, Rossmere Park TBC 19th Oct; Middlesbrough Centre Square, 27th Oct. The 
Glass Ceiling was funded by ACE, TVCA and contributions from each of the five local 
authorities. 

Great Place Tees Valley  

Tees Valley was one of 16 areas in England to be awarded funding via the Great Place 
Scheme.  The programme is jointly funded by Heritage Lottery Fund, Arts Council England 
and Natural England, with Tees Valley receiving £1,332,500 to support a programme of 
place making and community engagement through heritage and culture. £150,000 match 
funding was offered, split equally between the five local authorities and TVCA. The total 
project budget is £1,500,000 for three years’ activity until autumn 2020. 

The Tees Valley programme- Great Place Tees-Valley is managed by the Tees Valley 
Combined Authority and will see activity take place in each Local Authority area, as well as a 
number of ‘cross cutting’ programmes working across several locations. 

The Great Place scheme is mid-way though the funding programme, with Tees Valley 
projects at different stages of delivery. All Project Managers have now been recruited and all 
Great Place Tees Valley (GPTV) projects will see activity underway by September 2018. 
This will shorten the planned delivery timelines for some projects but all partners are 
expected to achieve expected milestones and outputs by autumn 2020. 
 

The projects include: 

Tees Valley wide: Greater Tees Practitioner Training: ARC will lead a training 
programme for creative practitioners to ensure that the Tees Valley has a skilled and 
experienced workforce to lead community engagement and participatory activity with 
socially excluded groups. Each year twelve practitioners will attend a ten-week training 
programme at ARC and will complete a six session placement in the Tees Valley with 
one of our partner organisations  

Heritage on Track: The project will help build community engagement in heritage of 
international significance in the lead up to 2025, the bi-centenary of the first railway 
passenger journey on Locomotion No. 1 on the Stockton & Darlington railway. It will 
explore the importance of both rail and local heritage within particular communities in 
Darlington which are based in close proximity to the track bed of the railway  



Creative Hartlepool: Great Place Tees Valley will support a programme of arts 
practitioner and student facilitated community engagement around heritage and 
cultural assets of Church Street & Church Square, including community arts events in 
the newly redeveloped Church Square/Waterfront, and a programme of creative 
industry led events for young people, introducing them to career and training 
opportunities in the sector.  

Theatre Hullabloo: StoryCatcher – Theatre with Children at the Heart: Theatre 
Hullabaloo pioneers a child-centred artistic model that grows ideas and new artistic 
work through a dialogue between artists and children. Artists will work with children in 
schools and nurseries in different communities in Darlington to generate stories and 
ideas that reflect the needs of children in those areas and develop them into new 
artistic work to be shared with other young audiences. 

Creative Factory - responding to the sector need in Middlesbrough for active maker 
spaces, workshops, and creative enterprise development for artists by working with 
Teesside University, Navigator North and Middlesbrough Council to bridge the gap 
between emerging artists, artists’ collectives and Teesside University. Creative 
Factory, allowing both local communities and the cultural sector to have access to 
University assets and equipment.  

Mima: The Middlesbrough Settlement: This project actively builds the relationship 
between Teesside University, artists, and creative practitioners in Middlesbrough, 
creating a stronger, more resilient cultural sector for Middlesbrough and the Tees 
Valley.  

Black Path - The aim of this project is to celebrate the historic Black Path in South 
Teesside through creating striking and unique artwork along part of its length. The 
project will bring together community historians, artists, environmentalists and people 
who have simply used the Black Path as a means of walking from A to B. It is 
anticipated that Mima and Groundwork Trust will be partners in the project, and work 
will be undertaken to promote the project to local people. The project will have three 
stages: generating debate about the content of the artwork; installation; and using the 
completed work to generate debate about local heritage and further representational 
artworks.  

Steel Gala- This project intends to re-create the annual Steel Gala which was held for 
many years in Redcar. It will involve intensive engagement with the local community, 
and establishing a community board that will ultimately take on the ownership of the 
event. It is thought that the event could become part of a wider Tees Valley series of 
community galas and carnivals.  

Red Barns - This project is concerned with understanding the potential for the ‘Red 
Barns’ property in Redcar to be regenerated as a cultural visitor attraction, or similar. 
The property has historical connections to the family of Sir Hugh Bell, and is 
architecturally significant. The project requires a feasibility study to be produced which 
explores various options for the future of the property.  

Tees Valley Arts: Tees Valley wide: This two-part project uncovers the under 
celebrated cultural heritage of the Tees Valley. Against the authorised, dominant and 
yet declinist heritage narrative of our region’s identity being intrinsically about heavy 
industry, our two projects will platform alternative narratives for our region  

Stockon:  SIRF – Tees Valley wide: Greater Tees Carnival: The aim is to share 
professional experience and knowledge of carnival and celebration with communities 



across the Tees Valley creating Carnival Satellites for local celebrations and capacity 
building which will culminate in a single Greater Tees Community Carnival during SIRF 
each year. The aim is to create a high quality vibrant energetic Community Carnival 
satellite that is created with for and by communities of the Tees Valley  

 
Capital Projects 

Kirkleatham Stables 

A Feasibility study has been commissioned with RCBC into best combination of 
cultural content, retail and food/drink options for the whole site.  TVCA has helped 
shortlist and the consultants group Amion have been appointed to develop the 
Business Case for the Stable Block. Amion are currently interviewing stakeholders, 
including the public, to gain thoughts on the ideal content of the Stable Block to 
maximize public interest as part of the whole Kirkleatham Estate going forward. 

Hartlepool Waterfront project 

Development application approved to build 4* hotel, event space, museum space and 
STEM learning centre.  Developing funding approval. Meeting held with National 
Museum of the Royal Navy to discuss a development grant and funding models for 
phase two of the project to re-invigorate the existing Historic Dockyard site as a parallel 
and connected development on the Waterfront. 

Railway Heritage Developments  

All railway heritage developments are linked to the history of the Stockton & Darlington 
Railway, established in 1825 and which is currently leading up to its 200th anniversary 
in 2025.  

• Stockton and Darlington Railway (S&DR) has Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 
status having been awarded £210K by Historic England in June 2018 and the 
Programme was approved by Historic England in May 2018 – which sees 44 
projects across. A HAZ Project Manager has been appointed.  

• The S&DR HAZ Programme currently has nine themes and 44 individual 
projects. The themes include: new and enhanced listing; research 
(incorporating aerial surveys, archaeology and building investigations); tackling 
heritage at risk and urgent repairs to historic structures; addressing heritage 
crime; development of heritage skills, school resources and training; community 
engagement and events; and building the capacity for tourism as well as 
providing opportunities for health and recreation 

Railway Heritage Attraction, Railway Heritage Quarter, Darlington 

This project aims to create a major visitor attraction at the North Road site, which will 
attract a minimum of 250K visitors per year by 2025. 

The first stage of the potential development of a major visitor attraction is the 
production of a masterplan vision by external consultants. The project masterplan brief 
is currently being finalised in August 2018 with a view to the masterplan work being 
delivered from October 2018 onwards and taking approximately 6 months to complete.  

The project could be a £20m+ project overall; with a minimum of 250k visitors per year. 
The masterplan work will create a clear vision and delivery plan for a major visitor 
attraction telling the story of the S&DR and associated rail heritage.    



 

S&DR 200th Anniversary celebrations  

A festival programme is being developed, leading up to and in 2025, to celebrate the 
bicentenary of the Stockton and Darlington Railway. 

Festivals and Events International (FEI) have recently produced a draft business plan, 
focusing on a celebration programme leading up to the anniversary, which has been 
presented to the Railway Heritage Board. It is anticipated that the event will be centred 
around the following core elements: 

o A central celebration event in either Darlington or Stockton. 

o A coordinated programme of live steam journeys and attractions and 
events along key sites and tracks. 

o A heritage focused commission that will have ongoing life beyond the 
celebration as an educational resource. 

o Co-ordination of key programming cultural partners and venues in the 
lead up to and during the celebration. 

o A specific strand that embeds education and learning in all aspects of 
the programme. 

A Walking and cycling route - aiming to ultimately link and offer access to the 
whole of the S&DR route – is also under development, with a European 
Agricultural Fund for Rural Development Expression of Interest submitted to the 
Tourism Infrastructure pot to install some of the walking and cycling route in Darlington 
and the outcome of this bid is pending. A brief for an S&DR walking and cycling access 
audit has been prepared and the need to undertake land ownership survey prior to 
commissioning the work if successful is currently being explored.   

 
Tourism  
 
Destination Marketing 
 
The first Enjoy Tees Valley campaign is live and showing promising results. Web traffic has 
seen a significant uplift, with the number of users in July more than doubling the number of 
users in June (125% increase). August’s web traffic has already matched web traffic in July 
(as at 21 August) and therefore the full month’s numbers are expected to show another 
significant increase on the previous month 
 
Campaign activity: 
 

• 85,000 leaflets distributed across the Tees Valley, Yorkshire and North East, largely 
in leaflets racks operated by Info Display, NPD and Aha 

• Radio campaign from June to August with TFM, Capital Yorkshire and Heart North 
East 

• Email and digital advertising campaign with Global Media (Capital Yorkshire and 
Heart North East) 

• Digital advertising campaign with TFM 
• Digital and print campaign with the Northern Echo 
• Consumer email to Enjoy Tees Valley database on 19 July 



• Enjoy Tees Valley stand at Sunderland Tall Ships - leaflet distribution and data 
capture. 

• Leaflets made available to Tees Valley events to increase distribution i.e. leaflets 
were distributed by the visitor experience team at SIRF. 

 
Summary of Enjoy Tees Valley website performance: 
 
 May June July August 
Users 1,682 1,919 5,029 6,363 
New users 1,573 1,827 4,871 6,049 
Sessions 2,066 2,316 5,755 7,098 
Page views 4,053 4,222 9,459 11,159 

 
 
 
Top 3 most visited sections of website in July: 
• Homepage 
• Rugby League World Cup  
• What’s On/Hartlepool Waterfront Festival 

 
Top 5 geographic locations of web visitors in July:  
• UK  
• USA 
• India 
• Australia 
• Spain 

 
Current Social Media following: 
Facebook: 2120 page likes 
Twitter: 1046 followers 
Instagram: 1,076 followers 
 
Tourism Travel Trade 
The first Tourism Industry Social event took place on Wednesday 29 August at Jury’s Inn. 
Around 40 representatives from the tourism industry were in attendance to hear updates 
from the Enjoy Tees Valley team, news on a new Tees Valley tourism data collection 
system, and network with their industry peers. The next event planned for November.  
 

 
Rugby League World Cup 2021 

• Middlesbrough Football Club, Middlesbrough Council, Darlington Mowden Park and 
Tees Valley Combined Authority have worked in partnership to submit a compelling 
bid to host a series of international matches during the Rugby League World Cup 
2021. It was confirmed on 20 August 2018 that the bid has progressed from applicant 
stage to candidate stage. 

• The bid includes an application to host a semi-final and up to two group games of the 
Men's competition, as well as provide a team base for the Australian National Rugby 
League team. Key venues in the bid include the Riverside Stadium, Northern Echo 
Arena and Rockliffe Hall.  

• A Back the Bid campaign has also been launched and has received strong media 
coverage and good traction across social media platforms. RLWC has announced 
£10M legacy funding and Middlesbrough Council, MFC Foundation and Darlington 
Mowden Park all intend to apply for funding support for legacy projects. 
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Tees Valley Combined Authority Overview & Scrutiny 
 

Work Programme 2018/19 
 
Standing Items 
 
Minutes from the Previous Meeting 
Announcements from the Chair 
Announcements from the Managing Director 
Forward Plan 
Date and Venue of the Next Meeting 
 
Date Venue Item / Responsible Officer 

25th October 
2018 at 10am 

Room 1 
Cavendish House 
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 
 

 
South Tees Development Corporation – TBC 
Portfolio update: Cllr Stephen Harker 
(Transport) 
Scrutiny Study Update: Diversity and the 
Tees Valley Combined Authority – John Hart 
 

6th December 
2018 at 10am 

Room 1 
Cavendish House 
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 
 

 
Portfolio update: Cllr Sue Jeffrey (Investment 
and Business Growth) 
Budget Sub-Committee: Update on Draft 
Budget and Half-Year Budget Performance 
Update on Investment Strategy, including 
Vibrant Town Centres and Investment Plan – 
Allison Fellows. 
Scrutiny Study Update: Diversity and the 
Tees Valley Combined Authority – John Hart 
 

17th January 
2019 at 2pm 

Room 1 
Cavendish House 
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 
 

 
Diversity and the Tees Valley Combined 
Authority: Draft Report – John Hart 
Budget Sub-Committee: Approval on Draft 
Budget Report 
Update on Durham Tees Valley Airport 
 

1st March 
February 2019 
at 12noon 

Room 1 
Cavendish House 
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 
 

 
Portfolio update: Cllr Christopher Ackers-
Belcher (Education, Employment and Skills) 
Regional Schools Commissioner (TBC) 
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25th April 2019 at 
10am 

Room 1 
Cavendish House 
Teesdale Business Park 
Stockton On Tees 
TS17 6QY 
 

Full-Year Budget Performance (2018/2019) 

 
 
 
Items to be scheduled  
 
Durham Tees Valley Airport 
Regional Schools Commissioner  
 

 
 
Budget Sub-Committee (Members: Cllrs Haszeldine, Thompson, Storey, Scott, 
Brown) 
Monday 3rd December 3 2018 at 1.30pm Draft 2019/2020 Budget (Circulated to 

members 23rd November)  
 

Thursday 6th December 2018 at 10am Full Committee Meeting to agree areas for 
investigation.  

Monday 10th December at 1.30pm • Draft 2019/20 Budget Meeting 
• Half-year Budget Performance 

(2018/2019) 
Thursday 17th January at 10am Full Committee to agree Draft Report  
Friday 31st January at 10am Cabinet receives Final Budget and 

Committee Report 
Tuesday 26th February TBC Expenses incurred by Combined 

Authority Members 
Tuesday 26th March TBC Full-Year Budget Performance 

(2018/2019) 
Thursday 25th April TBC Full Committee to receive report on 

Expenses Incurred by Combined Authority 
Members 

 
 
 
Contacts: 
 
John Hart – Governance & Scrutiny Officer 
Tel – 01642 524 4580 
Email – john.hart@teesvalley-ca.gov.uk 
 



Tees Valley Combined Authority (and Group) - Annual Financial Statements 2017/18

Page

Narrative Report 2

Statement of Accounts

Core Single Entity Financial Statements:

Movement in Reserves Statement - Group 6

Movement in Reserves Statement - TVCA 7

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Group 8

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - TVCA 9

Balance Sheet 10

Cash Flow Statement 11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements 12

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 41

Independent Auditor's Report 42

Appendices:

Appendix A: Glossary of Terms 43

CONTENTS

Page 1



Tees Valley Combined Authority - Annual Financial Statements 2017/18

Narrative Report



















The Tees Valley Combined Authority's first Investment Plan was published and agreed in March 2017.  For the 

first time, the Tees Valley was able to bring together multiple government funding sources, previously 

determined in Westminster and Whitehall, into a “single pot” for local decision-making.  The Investment Plan 

described how £464 million of investment was being invested through a 5 year programme from 2016-2021.  The 

Investment Plan also demonstrated how the Combined Authority would:

Introduction

Welcome to the Tees Valley Combined Authority’s Annual Statement of Accounts for 2017/18. The Statement of

Accounts contains all the financial statements and disclosure notes required by statute. The statements have

been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

2017/18. This Annual Statement of Accounts will, for the first time, be group accounts incorporating Tees Valley

Combined Authority and South Tees Development Corporation.

The Tees Valley Combined Authority (TVCA) was established in April 2016 as a new legal body that brings

together the five Authorities which serve Darlington, Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland and

Stockton, alongside private sector representation from the region’s Local Enterprise Partnership. The TVCA is

responsible for a number of transport functions and economic development and growth across the combined

area. In May 2017 the first Tees Valley Mayor was elected to chair the Combined Authority and drive forward our

ambitious plans.

Under new legal powers available to TVCA the South Tees Development Corporation (STDC) was established in

August 2017 to redevelop the site of the former SSI steelworks which closed down in 2015 following SSI's

liquidation. STDC is the first mayoral development corporation outside London.

Strategy and Priorities

The ambition is for Tees Valley to become a high value, low carbon, diverse and inclusive economy. These

aspirations and goals, along with the Combined Authority’s plan for delivering them, are laid down in the

refreshed Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), published in December 2016. Our ambition incorporates economic,

social and environmental priorities and will allow all partners to work towards a sustainable and socially

responsible Tees Valley.

Underlying this ambition is a commitment to improving the lifetime opportunities for local people, tackling some

of the difficult challenges of social exclusion, providing opportunities across all of the Tees Valley including rural

areas and disadvantaged communities, thereby ensuring that all citizens are able to share in the benefits of

economic growth. The SEP is focused around six thematic building blocks which reflect the main priorities and

areas of activities over the next ten years to unlock transformational growth.

Business Growth: Further increases in jobs and business density through targeted support to create and

attract new companies and to grow businesses and sectors with high growth potential;

Research, Development, Innovation & Energy: Further enhance productivity in all core sectors through

the commercialisation of knowledge;

Education, Employment & Skills: Ensure a labour market which meets the needs of local business and

supports the lifetime opportunities of all our residents;

Place: Promote the Tees Valley as the preferred location in the UK for energy intensive indigenous firms and

Foreign Direct Investment and create the conditions necessary to attract businesses and individuals with a

focus on vibrant town centres;

Culture: Change the external perceptions of Tees Valley through the arts, cultural and leisure offer, create

places that attract and retain businesses and business leaders, and make the area an attractive place to live,

work and visit; and

Transport & Infrastructure: Facilitate local, regional, national and international road, rail and broadband

connectivity through collaborative investment in physical infrastructure.

actively support project development;

respond flexibly to opportunities;

build an asset base to be used for future re-investment;
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The Vision for the South Tees regeneration programme is to see the area transformed into a hotbed of new 

industry and enterprise for the Tees Valley that makes a substantial contribution to the sustained economic 

growth and prosperity of the region and the communities it serves. 

In October 2017 the South Tees Development Corporation masterplan was launched which presents the vision, 

strategy and ideas for the transformational regeneration of the area into a world class employment-generating 

zone and economic growth enabler for the Tees Valley. The total area of opportunity extends to almost 4,500 

acres (1,800 hectares). The masterplan for the redevelopment of the site has been agreed with the long term 

view to redevelop the site to provide a high value, low carbon, diverse and inclusive economy. Creating 

significant employment prospects for the area.

The Vision of the STDC masterplan sees the creation of up to 20,000 new jobs. The focus is on higher skilled 

sectors and occupations, centred on manufacturing innovation and advanced technologies and those industries 

best able to deliver sustained economic prosperity for the Tees Valley and its people, while realising a jobs 

spectrum that offers opportunities for all. The strategic plan to redevelop the site is set out in the masterplan 

which is available via the website (www.southteesdc.com).

seek innovative partnership and commercial funding models;

continue to secure further resources into the local fund;

explore borrowing powers and take a commercial approach to assessing and managing risks; 

invest in strong proposals for the best value for money; and

work to the agreed Assurance Framework.

Achievements in Year
2017/18 was only the second year of operations for TVCA and we have successfully built on the work undertaken 

in the first year to prepare the organisation to undertake new devolved responsibilities. We have developed 

strategies and plans to shape future priorities and investments to meet our aims and objectives. Spend has been 

accelerated to start to deliver on a number of projects and programmes whilst also committing to new projects 

which match our ambitious plans. We have continued to strive for further devolved powers whilst securing 

additional funding from Government to fund our investments. A summary of these can be found below:-

In August 2017 we established the first Mayoral Development Corporation to be set up outside of Greater 

London with the Masterplan for the site being launched in October.

A draft Strategic Transport Plan has been developed to address transport issues in the Tees Valley and 

present a vision for the future

Our “Inspiring our Future” strategy was launched to transform education, employment and skills and 

increase residents access to the planned 133,000 jobs available in Tees Valley by 2024

A move to low-carbon, clean energy offers a remarkable economic opportunity for our area and during the 

year we were recognised by Energy Minister Claire Perry as the leading area for Carbon, Capture and 

Storage through the Teesside Collective

In March we launched “Enjoy Tees Valley” – a new destination marketing initiative that will promote local 

culture and attractions, and includes a new website.

We have continued to support business growth with more than 1,000 businesses engaging with Business 

Compass this year, and 672 companies electing to receive intensive face-to-face support.

During the year we have invested £51million on programmes, projects, grant schemes and development 

funding for future projects.

In the past year we have secured £67million in Government funding for a much-needed overhaul to our 

road and rail network, and we will continue to deliver our transformative vision for the future of transport in 

our area.

We have secured funding to enable a new £7.5million ‘Routes to Work’ scheme to help 2,500 long-term 

unemployed back to work.

We commenced the Great Place programme to strengthen cultural capacity and activity, creating stronger 

engagement in Tees Valley supported by £1.5million funding secured from Heritage Lottery Fund.
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Cash Flow Statement - This statement provides a summary of the flow of cash into and out of the Combined

Authority for revenue and capital purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements - These include the accounting policies and concepts applied, as well as the

disclosure notes relating to the above statements.

Key Sections Included in the Statement of Accounts

Statement of Responsibilities - This sets out the respective responsibilities of the Combined Authority and the

Chief Financial Officer for the Accounts.

Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement during the year of the different

reserves held by the Combined Authority.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This account summarises the revenue costs of

providing all services and the income and resources received in financing the expenditure.

Balance Sheet - The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities

recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves

held by the Authority.

Looking Ahead Including Risks and Opportunities

During the coming years we will continue to develop long-term commitments whilst being in a position to be 

responsive to new ideas and opportunities. We will continue to deliver transformational programmes and improve 

outcomes as a direct result of local decision making. Through our determination to secure a greater transfer of 

funding, powers and responsibility from London we aim to establish the Tees Valley as a flagship of successful 

devolution.

Our ambitious plans will rely on us securing the funding to make them a reality, and as such we will strive for 

further devolution through our continual dialogue with Government officials. We will continue to build upon our 

strong track record of securing funding to maximise all funding opportunities available. Through the use of our 

newly appointed borrowing powers and our partnership working with co-investors we will seek to explore a range 

of innovative funding instruments to maximise the impact for the area.

The STDC masterplan is an opportunity to enhance the local area through the creation of high quality jobs in 

industries which are resilient to future change and should create an increase in GVA locally and further afield. The 

initial risks are safeguarding the hazards and progression to land ownership and it is anticipated that these will be 

resolved in the near term. Medium term risks are of unforeseen issues when redeveloping the site, principally 

these would be ground conditions  but there could also be a similarly small risk of items identified whilst 

demolition of current structures takes place.

Brexit will have profound implications for the UK, and for the Tees Valley specifically. As one of a small number of 

areas which qualify for an enhanced level of access to European Funding, the resources available for investment 

in our economy are at particular risk. But there are also opportunities to develop new methods of funding, which 

could mean that Brexit actually improves the impact of regional economic development funding for areas such as 

ours. We will continue to engage with Government on future funding plans post Brexit.

In order to achieve our aims of delivering better outcomes for local people will we continue to  build and maintain 

relationships with key local partners. We will engage with the business community utilising our working 

relationship with the Local Enterprise Partnership members and key partners. 
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Further Information

Further information about our finances is available from the Combined Authority’s website, https://teesvalley-

ca.gov.uk or from the Chief Financial Officer, Tees Valley Combined Authority, Cavendish House, Teesdale

Business Park, Stockton-on-Tees, Tees Valley, TS17 6QY.  

Borrowing and Lending Arrangements

During 2017/18, the Combined Authority had no powers to borrow for investment and therefore has no loans.

The majority of the Authority’s surplus cash is invested in short-term bank deposits, and money market funds. At

the end of the financial year the Authority held investments totalling £91m. The average rate of return on

investments was 0.37% and this has generated £395k in interest in the year.                                                                                           

The Authority has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the

loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring

and control of risk are therefore central to the Authority’s treasury management strategy. 

In terms of investment strategy, given the increasing risk and falling returns from short-term unsecured bank

investments, the Authority aims to diversify into more secure and/or higher yielding asset classes during

2018/19.

Retirement Benefits (IAS 19)

The Authority is required to comply with the accounting principles as required by International Accounting

Standard 19 (IAS19). This requires the cost of retirement benefits to be recognised in the Financial Statements

when employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are actually paid as pensions. Disclosure requirements

include figures for the Net Pension Asset/Liability and the Pension Reserve in the Balance Sheet. There are also

entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Movement In Reserves Statement to reflect

movements in the Net Pension Asset/Liability from one year to the next. Entries are also required to reconcile

back to actual pension contributions payable for Authority tax purposes.
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F
u
n
d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 

U
n
a
p
p
li
e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s

T
o

ta
l 

A
u

th
o

r
it

y
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Transfer from Stockton Borough Council 35,121 35,121 35,121 

Movement in reserves during 2016/17

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 52,028 52,028 (1,723) 50,305 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (Note 5)
(40,403) 40,570 167 (167) -  

Increase/Decrease in Year 11,625   40,570 52,195 (1,890) 50,305 

Balance at 31 March 2017 carried forward 46,746   40,570 87,316 (1,890) 85,426 

Movement in reserves during 2017/18

Balance at 31 March 2017 brought forward 46,746 -  40,570 87,316 (1,890) 85,426 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 11,031 -  -  11,031 48 11,079 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (Note 5)
(6,431) -  6,862 431 (431) -  

Increase/Decrease in Year 4,600 -  6,862 11,462 (383) 11,079 

Balance at 31 March 2018 carried forward 51,346 -  47,432 98,778 (2,273) 96,505 

General Fund analysed over:

Amounts earmarked (Note 6) 50,313 

Amounts uncommitted 1,033 

Total General Fund Balance 

at 31 March 2018
51,346 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Group, analysed into ‘usable

reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the

Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Groups services, more details of which are

shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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TVCA Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018
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£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Transfer from Stockton Borough Council 35,121 35,121 35,121 

Movement in reserves during 2016/17

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 52,028 52,028 (1,723) 50,305 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (Note 5)
(40,403) 40,570 167 (167) -  

Increase/Decrease in Year 11,625   40,570 52,195 (1,890) 50,305 

Balance at 31 March 2017 carried forward 46,746   40,570 87,316 (1,890) 85,426 

Movement in reserves during 2017/18

Balance at 31 March 2017 brought forward 46,746 -  40,570 87,316 (1,890) 85,426 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 7,181 -  -  7,181 49 7,230 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (Note 5)
(5,508) -  5,937 429 (429) -  

Increase/Decrease in Year 1,673 -  5,937 7,610 (380) 7,230 

Balance at 31 March 2018 carried forward 48,419 -  46,507 94,926 (2,270) 92,656 

General Fund analysed over:

Amounts earmarked (Note 6) 47,458 

Amounts uncommitted 961 

Total General Fund Balance 

at 31 March 2018
48,419 
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

for the year ended 31 March 2018

2016/17 2017/18

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

6,108 (10,112) (4,004) Business Growth 3,130 (1,541) 1,589 

1,631 (4,378) (2,747) Research Development Innovation & Energy 3,937 (67) 3,870 

4,558 (6,827) (2,269) Education Employment & Skills 6,382 (1,216) 5,166 

25 -  25 Culture 685 (474) 211 

20,602 (20,863) (261) Transport 23,338 (19,361) 3,977 

58 (6,679) (6,621) Enabling Infrastructure 10,706 (3,593) 7,113 

1,258 (1,258) -  Project Development 1,006 (1,176) (170)

2,227 (7,028) (4,801) Core Running Costs 4,492 (5,583) (1,091)

16,505 (16,505) -  Concessionary Fares 16,628 (16,628) -  

8,259 1,485 9,744 SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan 5,152 50 5,202 

1,309 (1,237) 72 Not Directly Attributable to Themes 1,411 (9,898) (8,487)

62,540 (73,402) (10,862) Cost Of Services 76,867 (59,487) 17,380 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

160 (130) 30 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset 176 (136) 40 

(253) (253) Interest receivable and similar income (462) (462)

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income:

-  (373) (373) Non-ringfenced government grants -  -  -  

-  (40,570) (40,570) Capital grants and contributions -  (27,989) (27,989)

(52,028) (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 77,043 (88,074) (11,031)

1,723 Re-measurements of the defined benefit liability (48)

-  Other (gains) and losses -  

1,723 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (48)

(50,305) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (11,079)

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) shows the economic cost in the year of providing services in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting practices. 
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TVCA Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

for the year ended 31 March 2018

2016/17 2017/18

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

6,108 (10,112) (4,004) Business Growth 3,130 (1,541) 1,589 

1,631 (4,378) (2,747) Research Development Innovation & Energy 3,937 (67) 3,870 

4,558 (6,827) (2,269) Education Employment & Skills 6,382 (1,216) 5,166 

25 -  25 Culture 685 (474) 211 

20,602 (20,863) (261) Transport 23,338 (19,361) 3,977 

58 (6,679) (6,621) Enabling Infrastructure 11,631 (3,593) 8,038 

1,258 (1,258) -  Project Development 4,130 (3,550) 580 

2,227 (7,028) (4,801) Core Running Costs 4,283 (3,199) 1,084 

16,505 (16,505) -  Concessionary Fares 16,628 (16,628) -  

8,259 1,485 9,744 SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan 5,152 50 5,202 

1,309 (1,237) 72 Not Directly Attributable to Themes 1,411 (9,898) (8,487)

62,540 (73,402) (10,862) Cost Of Services 80,707 (59,477) 21,230 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

160 (130) 30 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset 176 (136) 40 

(253) (253) Interest receivable and similar income (462) (462)

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income:

-  (373) (373) Non-ringfenced government grants -  -  -  

-  (40,570) (40,570) Capital grants and contributions -  (27,989) (27,989)

(52,028) (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 80,883 (88,064) (7,181)

1,723 Re-measurements of the defined benefit liability (49)

-  Other (gains) and losses -  

1,723 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (49)

(50,305) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (7,230)
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Group & TVCA Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018

Group TVCA TVCA and Group

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s

Non-current assets

Long Term Debtors 6,448 6,448 5,013 

Total non-current assets 6,448 6,448 5,013 

Current assets

Short term investments 65,000 65,000 50,056 

Debtors 10 5,060 5,282 5,966 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 30,074 26,000 28,002 

Total current assets 100,134 96,282 84,024 

Current liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 (2,648) (2,648)

Short Term Creditors 12 (5,378) (5,375) (1,897)

Total current liabilities (8,026) (8,023) (1,897)

Long term liabilities

Long Term Creditors -  -  

Other Long Term Liabilities 13 & 20 (2,051) (2,051) (1,714)

Total long term liabilities (2,051) (2,051) (1,714)

Net Assets: 96,505 92,656 85,426 

Reserves  

Usable reserves:

General Fund Balance 1 1,033 961 668 

Earmarked General Fund Reserves 6 50,313 47,458 46,078 

Capital Grants Unapplied 47,432 46,507 40,570 

98,778 94,926 87,316 

Unusable Reserves:

Pensions Reserve 13 & 20 (2,051) (2,051) (1,714)

Accumulated Absences Account 5 (222) (219) (176)

(2,273) (2,270) (1,890)

Total Reserves: 96,505 92,656 85,426 

Mayor Ben Houchen ……………………………………………………

Chair Tees Valley Combined Authority Cabinet 

31st July 2018

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the

Group. The net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Group.

Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves

that the Group may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any

statutory limitations on their use. The second category of reserves are those that the Group is not able to use to

provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses and reserves

that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line “Adjustments between accounting

basis and funding basis under regulations”. 

N
o
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Group & TVCA Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 31 March 2018

Group TVCA TVCA and 

Group

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s £000s

Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (11,031) (7,181) (52,028)

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-

cash movements:

Pension Fund adjustments (385) (386) 9 

Transfer of reserves from Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council -  -  (35,121)

Increase/(Decrease) in Revenue Debtors 10 (906) (684) 5,966 

(Increase)/Decrease in Revenue Creditors 12 (3,481) (3,478) (1,897)

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Debtors 1,435 1,435 5,013 

(3,337) (3,113) (26,030)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing activities:

Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of services 6,862 5,937 40,570 

6,862 5,937 40,570 

Net cashflow from operating activities (7,506) (4,357) (37,488)

Investing activities

Purchase of short term and long term investments 71,000 71,000 50,056 

Proceeds from short term and long term investments (56,056) (56,056) -  

Other receipts from investing activities (6,862) (5,937) (40,570)

Net cashflow from investing activities 8,082 9,007 9,486 

Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 576 4,650 (28,002)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (28,002) (28,002) -  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 11 (27,426) (23,352) (28,002)

The cashflow for operating activities includes the following items:

Interest received (375) (375) (191)

Interest paid -  -  -  

N
o

te

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group during the reporting period. The

statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing

and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the

operations of the Group are funded by way contributions and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the

Group. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to

contribute to the Group’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on

future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Group.
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2016/17 2017/18

Net 

Expenditure

Chargeable 

to the 

General

Fund

Adjustments

between the

Funding and

Accounting

Basis

Net Expenditure

in the 

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

Statement

Net 

Expenditure

Chargeable 

to the 

General

Fund

Adjustments

between the

Funding and

Accounting

Basis

Net Expenditure

in the 

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

Statement

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

43 (4,047) (4,004) Business Growth 1,540 49 1,589 

45 (2,792) (2,747) Research Development Innovation & Energy 7 3,863 3,870 

21 (2,290) (2,269) Education Employment & Skills 1,173 3,993 5,166 

24 1 25 Culture 467 (256) 211 

30 (291) (261) Transport 1,182 2,795 3,977 

-  (6,621) (6,621) Enabling Infrastructure 872 6,241 7,113 

-  -  -  Project Development 3,350 (3,520) (170)

(276) (4,525) (4,801) Core Running Costs 1,000 (2,091) (1,091)

-  -  -  Concessionary Fares -  -  -  

(1) 9,745 9,744 SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan -  5,202 5,202 

72 -  72 Not Directly Attributable to Themes 12,130 (20,617) (8,487)

(42) (10,820) (10,862) Net Cost Of Services 21,721 (4,341) 17,380 

(626) (40,540) (41,166) Other Income and Expenditure (22,086) (6,325) (28,411)

(668) (51,360) (52,028) Surplus or Deficit (365) (10,666) (11,031)

-  Opening General Fund Balance 668 

668 Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) 365 

668 Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 2017 1,033 

Note 1: Group Expenditure & Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources by the Group in comparison with 

those resources consumed or earned by the Group in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this 

expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Groups directorates/services/departments. Income and expenditure 

accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement.
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Group Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis:

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change

for the 

Pensions

Adjustments

Other

Differences

Total

Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Business Growth 1,394 9 (1,354) 49 

Research Development Innovation & Energy 3,327 -  536 3,863 

Education Employment & Skills 4,886 14 (907) 3,993 

Culture 201 7 (464) (256)

Transport 3,908 -  (1,113) 2,795 

Enabling Infrastructure 6,875 3 (637) 6,241 

Project Development 536 -  (4,056) (3,520)

Core Running Costs -  301 (2,392) (2,091)

Concessionary Fares -  -  -  -  

SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan -  13 5,189 5,202 

Not Directly Attributable to Themes -  -  (20,617) (20,617)

Net Cost Of Services 21,127 347 (25,815) (4,341)

(27,989) 40 21,624 (6,325)

(6,862) 387 (4,191) (10,666)

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change

for the 

Pensions

Adjustments

Other

Differences

Total

Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Business Growth -  (2) (4,045) (4,047)

Research Development Innovation & Energy -  -  (2,792) (2,792)

Education Employment & Skills -  (1) (2,289) (2,290)

Culture -  (1) 2 1 

Transport -  -  (291) (291)

Enabling Infrastructure -  -  (6,621) (6,621)

Project Development -  -  -  -  

Core Running Costs -  (33) (4,492) (4,525)

Concessionary Fares -  -  -  -  

SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan -  (2) 9,747 9,745 

Not Directly Attributable to Themes -  -  -  -  

Net Cost Of Services ` -  (39) (10,781) (10,820)

(40,570) 30 -  (40,540)

(40,570) (9) (10,781) (51,360)

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2017/18

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Other Income and Expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis

Difference between General Fund Surplus or Deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2016/17

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Other Income and Expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis

Difference between General Fund Surplus or Deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services

Adjustments for capital purposes: this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and

losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the

amounts written off for those assets.
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Group Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis:

Expenditure and Income Analysed By Nature

The Authority's expenditure and income is analysed as follows: Group TVCA TVCA and Group

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s £000s

Expenditure

Employee benefits expenses 3,694 3,579 2,476 

Other services expenses 72,944 77,128 60,065 

Interest payments 176 176 160 

Total Expenditure 76,814 80,883 62,701 

Income

Fees, charges and other service income (108) (98) (691)

Interest and investment income (598) (598) (383)

Government grants and contributions (87,139) (87,368) (113,655)

Total Income (87,845) (88,064) (114,729)

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (11,031) (7,181) (52,028)

Segmental Income

Group TVCA TVCA and Group

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below: 2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s £000s

Services
Income

from

Services

Income

from

Services

Income

from

Services

Business Growth -  0 0 

Research Development Innovation & Energy -  0 0 

Education Employment & Skills (7) (7) 0 

Culture -  0 0 

Transport -  0 0 

Enabling Infrastructure -  0 0 

Project Development -  0 0 

Core Running Costs (94) (84) (275)

SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan (7) (7) (416)

Total income analysed on a segmental basis (108) (98) (691)

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments: this is the net change for the removal of pension contributions and the

addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 

For service s this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the Group as allowed by

statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs. 

For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined benefit liability is

charged to the CIES. 

Other Differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and

amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to

the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. 

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income not

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the

year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation

and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without

conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum

Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.
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2016/17 2017/18

Net 

Expenditure

Chargeable 

to the 

General

Fund

Adjustments

between the

Funding and

Accounting

Basis

Net Expenditure

in the 

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

Statement

Net 

Expenditure

Chargeable 

to the 

General

Fund

Adjustments

between the

Funding and

Accounting

Basis

Net Expenditure

in the 

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

Statement

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

43 (4,047) (4,004) Business Growth 1,541 48 1,589 

45 (2,792) (2,747) Research Development Innovation & Energy 7 3,863 3,870 

21 (2,290) (2,269) Education Employment & Skills 1,173 3,993 5,166 

24 1 25 Culture 467 (256) 211 

30 (291) (261) Transport 1,183 2,794 3,977 

-  (6,621) (6,621) Enabling Infrastructure 872 7,166 8,038 

-  -  -  Project Development 3,349 (2,769) 580 

(276) (4,525) (4,801) Core Running Costs 1,072 12 1,084 

-  -  -  Concessionary Fares -  -  -  

(1) 9,745 9,744 SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan -  5,202 5,202 

72 -  72 Not Directly Attributable to Themes 12,129 (20,616) (8,487)

(42) (10,820) (10,862) Net Cost Of Services 21,793 (563) 21,230 

(626) (40,540) (41,166) Other Income and Expenditure (22,086) (6,325) (28,411)

(668) (51,360) (52,028) Surplus or Deficit (293) (6,888) (7,181)

-  Opening General Fund Balance 668 

668 Less/Plus Surplus or (Deficit) 293 

668 Closing General Fund Balance at 31 March 2017 961 

Note 1: Expenditure & Funding Analysis TVCA

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources by the Combined Authority in 

comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the authority in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also 

shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Authority’s directorates/services/departments. Income 

and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement.
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Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis: TVCA

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change

for the 

Pensions

Adjustments

Other

Differences

Total

Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Business Growth 1,394 9 (1,355) 48 

Research Development Innovation & Energy 3,327 -  536 3,863 

Education Employment & Skills 4,886 14 (907) 3,993 

Culture 201 7 (464) (256)

Transport 3,908 -  (1,114) 2,794 

Enabling Infrastructure 7,800 3 (637) 7,166 

Project Development 536 -  (3,305) (2,769)

Core Running Costs -  300 (288) 12 

Concessionary Fares -  -  -  -  

SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan -  13 5,189 5,202 

Not Directly Attributable to Themes -  -  (20,616) (20,616)

Net Cost Of Services 22,052 346 (22,961) (563)

(27,989) 40 21,624 (6,325)

(5,937) 386 (1,337) (6,888)

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net change

for the 

Pensions

Adjustments

Other

Differences

Total

Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Business Growth -  (2) (4,045) (4,047)

Research Development Innovation & Energy -  -  (2,792) (2,792)

Education Employment & Skills -  (1) (2,289) (2,290)

Culture -  (1) 2 1 

Transport -  -  (291) (291)

Enabling Infrastructure -  -  (6,621) (6,621)

Project Development -  -  -  -  

Core Running Costs -  (33) (4,492) (4,525)

Concessionary Fares -  -  -  -  

SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan -  (2) 9,747 9,745 

Not Directly Attributable to Themes -  -  -  -  

Net Cost Of Services ` -  (39) (10,781) (10,820)

(40,570) 30 -  (40,540)

(40,570) (9) (10,781) (51,360)

Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the

amounts written off for those assets.

Adjustments for capital purposes: this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and

losses in the services line, and for:

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2017/18

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Other Income and Expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis

Difference between General Fund Surplus or Deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2016/17

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement Amounts

Other Income and Expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis

Difference between General Fund Surplus or Deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services
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Expenditure and Income Analysed By Nature

The Authority's expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Expenditure

Employee benefits expenses 3,579 2,476 

Other services expenses 77,128 60,065 

Interest payments 176 160 

Total Expenditure 80,883 62,701 

Income

Fees, charges and other service income (98) (691)

Interest and investment income (598) (383)

Government grants and contributions (87,368) (113,655)

Total Income (88,064) (114,729)

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (7,181) (52,028)

Segmental Income

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below: 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Services
Income

from

Services

Income

from

Services

Business Growth 0 0 

Research Development Innovation & Energy 0 0 

Education Employment & Skills (7) 0 

Culture 0 0 

Transport 0 0 

Enabling Infrastructure 0 0 

Project Development 0 0 

Core Running Costs (84) (275)

SSI Related Schemes Not in the Investment Plan (7) (416)

Total income analysed on a segmental basis (98) (691)

Other Differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and

amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to

the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. 

Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum

Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income not

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the

year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation

and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without

conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments - this is the net change for the removal of pension contributions and the

addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 

For service s this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by

statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs. 

For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined benefit liability is

charged to the CIES. 
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•

•

•

•

There are no critical judgements made.

IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets as

right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is recognition for low-value and short-term leases).

The items in TVCA's and the Group Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018 for which there is a significant risk of material

adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Note 4: Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 

Uncertainty (TVCA and Group)

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by TVCA and the Group

about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience,

current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual

results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

Pension liabilities: estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements

relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,

mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide

TVCA and the Group with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. Sensitivities are included in Note 20.

Note 2: Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

(TVCA and Group)

At the balance sheet date the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been published

but not yet adopted by the Code of Practice of Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom:

Note 3: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (TVCA and Group)

In applying its accounting policies the TVCA and the Group has had to make certain judgements about complex

transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of

Accounts are: 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which introduces extensive changes to the classification and measurement of

financial assets, and a new “expected credit loss” model for impairing financial assets. The impact will be to

reclassify assets currently classified as loans and receivables, and available for sale to amortised cost and fair value

through other comprehensive income respectively based on the contractual cashflows and business model for

holding the assets. There are not expected to be any changes in the measurement of financial assets. Assessment

of the Authority and Group financial assets does not anticipate any impairment.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers presents new requirements for the recognition of revenue, based

on a control-based revenue recognition model. The Authority and Group does not have any material revenue

streams within the scope of the new standard.

TVCA and the Group do not anticipate that the above amendments will have a material impact on the information

provided in the financial statements in that there is unlikely to be a change to the reported information in the

reported net cost of services or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
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2017/18
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account (see note 7) -  -  

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (6,862) 6,862 -  

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve 385 (385)

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account 46 (46)

Total Adjustments (6,431) -  6,862 (431)
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account (see note 7) -  -  

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (5,937) 5,937 -  

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve 386 (386)

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account 43 (43)

Total Adjustments (5,508) -  5,937 (429)

2016/17 Comparative figures
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account -  -  

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (40,570) 40,570 -  

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve -  -  -  

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve -  -  

Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account -  -  

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve (9) 9 

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account 176 (176)

Total Adjustments (40,403) -  40,570 (167)

Note 5: Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

Group

TVCA
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Earmarked Reserves
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Revenue Reserves

Development Pot
(2,159) 220 -  (1,939)

Investment Fund (21,587) 1,543 (11,342) (31,386)

SSI (22,332) 5,344 -  (16,988)

Total Revenue Reserves (46,078) 7,107 (11,342) (50,313)
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£000s £000s £000s £000s

Revenue Reserves

Development Pot
(2,159) 220 -  (1,939)

Investment Fund (21,587) 1,543 (8,487) (28,531)

SSI (22,332) 5,344 -  (16,988)

Total Revenue Reserves (46,078) 7,107 (8,487) (47,458)

Note 7: Capital Adjustment Account

Group and TVCA

2017/18 2016/17

Balance at 1 April 2017 £000s £000s

 - Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 43,151 28,339 

43,151 28,339 

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure

 - Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital 

financing

(18,279) (28,339)

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account

(22,052) -  

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund balance (2,820) -  

(43,151) (28,339)

Balance at 31 March 2018 -  -  

Note 8: Group and TVCA Members' Allowances

If applicable the amounts paid to each elected member of the Group and Authority are published annually. Elected 

members from the constituent local authorities sit on various TVCA and STDC boards and no payments were made to 

these members during 2017/18. The allowance in respect of the Mayor was £32,375  for 2017/18. The Chair of the 

Local Enterprise partnership, Paul Booth, sits on TVCA Cabinet and during the year he was re-imbursed £5,203 in 

relation to accomodation and travel costs incurred whilst representing TVCA.

Note 6: Movements in Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing 

for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund 

expenditure in 2017/18. 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Group

TVCA
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Note 9: Employee remuneration

Group and TVCA

Post holder information                                                                                                           
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£ £ £ £ £ £

Managing Director 136,350 734 -  137,084 32,817 169,901 

Strategy Director 89,259 549 -  89,808 14,192 104,000 

Investment Director 89,259 599 -  89,858 14,192 104,050 

Business Director 89,259 1,473 -  90,732 14,192 104,924 

75,487 -  -  75,487 12,002 87,489 

Head of Culture & Tourism 75,057 -  -  75,057 12,002 87,059 

Director of Finance 56,387 -  -  56,387 8,965 65,352 

Head of Transport 75,487 -  -  75,487 12,002 87,489 

Head of Comms & Marketing 13,190 -  -  13,190 2,097 15,287 

75,487 -  -  75,487 12,002 87,489 

775,221 3,354 -  778,576 134,466 913,042 

Post holder information                                                                                                           
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£ £ £ £ £ £

Managing Director 100,161 559 -  100,720 8,694 109,414 

Strategy Director 91,932 651 -  92,583 18,202 110,785 

Investment Director 21,619 158 -  21,777 4,280 26,057 

Business Director 91,932 964 -  92,896 18,202 111,098 

17,078 -  -  17,078 3,381 20,459 

Head of Culture & Tourism 16,993 -  -  16,993 3,620 20,613 

Head of Transport 5,827 -  -  5,827 1,154 6,981 

31,142 -  -  31,142 6,166 37,308 

376,684 2,332 -  379,016 63,699 442,715 

Remuneration Summary

Salary Range

  £50,001 - £55,000£50,001 - £55,000

  £55,001 - £60,000£55,001 - £60,000

  £60,001 - £65,000£60,001 - £65,000

  £65,001 - £70,000£65,001 - £70,000

  £70,001 - £75,000£70,001 - £75,000

  £75,001 - £80,000£75,001 - £80,000

  £80,001 - £85,000£80,001 - £85,000

  £85,001 - £90,000£85,001 - £90,000

  £90,001 - £95,000£90,001 - £95,000

£95,001 - £100,000

£100,001 - £105,000

£125,001 - £130,000

£130,001 - £135,000

£135,001 - £140,000

Remuneration of the Managing Director and his senior staff are shown in the following table.

Head of Homes & Communities

Head of Skills Education & Employment

The Director of Finance commenced employment with the organisation in August 2017 and the Head of Communications 

and Marketing commenced in January 2018.

Head of Skills Education & Employment

Remuneration of Senior Employees 2017/18

Remuneration of Senior Employees 2016/17

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Number of Employees

- 

1 

- 

- 

- 

The number of employees whose taxable remuneration, including benefits, redundancy and other severance payments, 

exceeded £50,000 is shown below, in bands of £5,000:

- 

Number of Employees

2017/18 2016/17

Remuneration of the Managing Director and his senior staff has been excluded from the salary range analysis shown in the 

table above.

Head of Homes & Communities

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- - 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Only two of the senior employee posts were in employment of the organisation for the full financial year. These being the 

Strategy Director and Business Director. All other employees commenced employment at various stages of the year.

- 

- 

- 
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Note 10: Debtors Group TVCA
TVCA and 

Group

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s

Central Government 1,576 1,569 1,372 

Local Government 3,254 3,483 4,500 

Other entities and individuals 230 230 94 

5,060 5,282 5,966 

Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group TVCA
TVCA and 

Group

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s

Bank and Imprests (2,648) (2,648) 2,996 

Cash Equivalents 30,074 26,000 25,006 

27,426 23,352 28,002 

Note 12: Short Term Creditors

Group TVCA
TVCA and 

Group

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s

Central Government (90) (90) (59)

Local Government (2,650) (2,650) (1,474)

Other entities and individuals (2,638) (2,635) (364)

(5,378) (5,375) (1,897)

Note 13: Other Long Term Liabilities

Group TVCA
TVCA and 

Group

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s

Net pensions liability (2,051) (2,051) (1,714)

(2,051) (2,051) (1,714)
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Note 14: Related Party Transactions (TVCA and Group)

Central Government

Members

TVCA Constituent Authorities

Income 

Received
Expenditure

£000s £000s

4,266 6,464 

4,966 13,112 

5,049 4,330 

2,349 7,151 

3,177 9,084 

19,806 40,141 

Income 

Received
Expenditure

£000s £000s

4,832 4,844 

4,590 6,994 

4,895 3,235 

2,582 2,941 

3,431 3,808 

20,330 21,822 

Long Term 

Debtors

Short Term 

Debtors

Short Term 

Creditors

£000s £000s £000s

Stockton On Tees Borough Council -  120 750 

Middlesbrough Borough Council 3,552 675 241 

Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council -  2,318 246 

Hartlepool Borough Council 1,763 139 158 

Darlington Borough Council 1,100 1 688 

Total 6,415 3,253 2,083 

Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council

Hartlepool Borough Council

Darlington Borough Council

Total

As at 31 March 2018 the below balances were held in the groups balance sheet in respect of the constituent 

authorities.

Darlington Borough Council

Total

2016/17

Stockton On Tees Borough Council

Middlesbrough Borough Council

2017/18

Stockton On Tees Borough Council

Middlesbrough Borough Council

Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council

Hartlepool Borough Council

TVCA and the Group are required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that

have the potential to control or influence them or to be controlled or influenced by them. Disclosure of these

transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which TVCA and the Group might have been constrained in its

ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with

the Group. 

Central government has effective control over the general operations of TVCA and the Group – it is responsible for

providing the statutory framework within which they operate, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants

and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that they have with other parties. Grants received from

government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 18. During the year the Group incurred

expenditure totalling £33k in relation to Central Government Departments excluding HMRC.

Members of the Authority and STDC have direct control over the Groups financial and operating policies. The total of

members’ allowances paid in 2017/18 is shown in Note 8. During 2017/18, there were no related party transactions

between  members and TVCA or STDC.

The Code of Practice requires local authorities to produce Group Accounts to reflect significant activities by other

organisations in which the Council has an interest. The Combined Authority has considered its interests in this respect,

both quantitatively and qualitatively, and has concluded that its subsidiary, South Tees Development Corporation

(STDC), is materially significant to the overall financial position of the Combined Authority and is therefore

consolidated into the Group Financial Statements. During 2017/18 TVCA provided a grant of £2.399m to STDC. TVCA

incurred £229k expenditure on behalf of STDC, which was owed to TVCA at the year end.

The Leaders and Elected Mayor of the five TVCA constituent Authorities serve as members of the TVCA Leadership

Board. Details of income and expenditure with the five Authorities are set out in the table below. 

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
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Note 15: External Audit Costs (TVCA and Group)

Group TVCA
TVCA and 

Group

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s £000s

48 30 30 

48 30 30 

Rebate from Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (4)

 Note 16: Leases  (TVCA and Group)

Operating leases: TVCA as lessee

Future minimum lease payments due 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Not later than one year 152 119 

Later than one year & not later than five years 608 608 

Later than five years 570 722 

1,330 1,449 

At the end of 2017/18 STDC did not hold any leases.

Note 17: Capital Expenditure and Financing (TVCA and Group)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s

Opening Capital Financing Requirement -  -  

Capital investment

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 43,151 28,339 

Sources of Finance

Government grants and other contributions (40,331) (28,339)

Sums set aside from revenue:

Direct revenue contributions (2,820) -  

Closing Capital Financing Requirement -  -  

From the 1st January 2017 the TVCA took on the lease of the third floor of Cavendish House. The new lease is for

a term of 10 years. The minimum lease payments due in future years are:

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year by TVCA is shown in the table below together with 

the resources that have been used to finance it. No capital expenditure was made by STDC. Where capital 

expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the 

expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital 

expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the bottom 

part of this note. 

The Group has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of

grant claims and to non-audit services provided by the Groups external auditors:

Fees payable to Mazars LLP with regard to external audit services
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Note 18: Grant Income (TVCA and Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Local Growth Fund 27,989 28,479 

SSI -  6,872 

Growing Places -  4,063 

Development Pot -  1,156 

27,989 40,570 

Local Growth Fund -  9,308 

National Productivity Investment Fund 2,298 -  

DfT Access Fund 1,163 -  

DfT Local Majors 100 -  

DWP Routes To Work 133 -  

AEB 16 -  

BIES Growth Hub 246 246 

ESIF 1,337 -  

HLF Great Places 85 -  

SSI -  7,368 

LEP Core 500 500 

One Public Estates 359 -  

ERDF Business Compass -  339 

AGE 379 1,158 

DECC - City Deal / Carbon 7 300 

Devolution 15,000 15,000 

Sustainable Transport -  990 

Pothole Action Fund 1,929 

 Local Transport Plan 13,952 14,674 

MHCLG - STDC 2,399 -  

Contributions from other LA's -  2,088 

Other -  3,450 

39,903 55,421 

The Authority and Group credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement in 2017/18. 
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Note 19: Financial Instruments (TVCA and Group)

Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Loans and receivables 6,448 5,013 95,074 78,058 

-  -  4,718 5,812 

Total financial assets 6,448 5,013 99,792 83,870 

-  -  (5,151) (1,662)

Total financial liabilities -  -  (5,151) (1,662)

        

        

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

Mark to Model Valuation for Financial Instruments  

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Financial liabilities 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Bank Overdraft (2,648) (2,648) -  -  

Total financial liabilities (2,648) (2,648) -  -  

Loans and receivables

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Money Market Loans < 1 year 65,000 65,000 50,056 50,056 

Other Loans >1 year 6,448 6,448 5,013 5,013 

Cash on Deposit 30,074 30,074 28,002 28,002 

Customers 4,718 4,718 5,812 5,812 

Total loans and receivables 106,240 106,240 88,883 88,883 

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long term debtors and creditors are

carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of

the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

Available for sale assets and assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet

at their fair value. These fair values are based on public price quotations where there is an active market for the

instrument. The exceptions to this treatment are short term debtors and creditors which are carried at cost as this is a

fair approximation of their value. 

No early repayment or impairment is recognised;

Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the fair value is

taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount.

Long Term Current

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

As at 31st March 2018 the Group held £106.2m financial assets and had financial liabilities of £2.6m. All the financial

assets are classed as Loans and Receivables and held with Notice Accounts. To provide a fair value which provides a

comparison to the carrying amount, we have used a financial model valuation provided by Arlingclose our Treasury

Managment Advisors. This valuation applies the Net Present Value approach, which provides an estimate of the value

of payments in the future in today's terms as at the balance sheet date. This is a widely accepted valuation technique

commonly used by the private sector. 

Financial assets carried at contract amounts

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but for which 

Fair Value disclosures are required)
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Note 19: Financial Instruments (TVCA and Group)

Key risks

The Groups activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; the key risks are:

        

        

        

        

Overall procedures for managing risks

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and

selecting investment counterparties in compliance with Government guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the start of the year to which they relate. These items

are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in

relation to the Groups financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported after each year and regular

updates are provided to the Audit & Governance Committees.

liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make

payments

re-financing risk – the possibility that the Authority might be requiring to renew a financial instrument on

maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms

Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt;

Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

The Groups overall borrowing;

market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such

measures as interest rates and stock market movements

The Groups maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £72,000

cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal

sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be

unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Groups deposits, but there was no

evidence at the 31 March 2018 that this was likely to crystallise. 

The following analysis summarises the Groups potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets,

based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current market

conditions. 

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Groups

customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategies, which requires that deposits are not

made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch,

Moody's and Standard & Poors Credit Ratings Services. 

The Annual Investment Strategies also consider maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial

institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements

of the investment criteria outlined above. Additional selection criteria are also applied after this initial criteria is

applied.  Details of the Investment Strategy can be found on TVCA's website.

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority

The Groups overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and are structured

to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out through a

legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations. These require the Group to

comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services

and investment guidance issued through the Act. Overall, these procedures require the Group to manage risk in the

following ways:

by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;

by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its financial

regulations/standing orders/constitution;

by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years limiting:

Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;
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Note 19: Financial Instruments (TVCA and Group)

               

Amount at     

31 March 

2018

Historical 

experience of 

default 

Adjustment 

for market 

conditions at 

31 March 

2018

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2018

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2017

£000s % % £000s £000s

A rated counterparties 53,000 0.06% 0.08% 42 21 

Local Authorities 35,000 0.06% 0.07% 25 -  

Debtors 4,718 0.10% 0.10% 5 -  

72 21 

•

        

        

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 258 301 

Impact on (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 258 301 

Foreign Exchange Risk: The Group has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and

therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

Price Risk: The Group, excluding the pension fund, does not invest in equity shares or marketable bonds.

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being

reversed.

If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:

investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances)

Refinancing and Maturity risk

The Group maintains a significant investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered against

the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Group relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial

instruments as they mature. The approved treasury indicator limits placed on investments are the key parameters

used to address this risk. The approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the central

treasury team address the operational risks within the approved parameters.  This includes:

monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for day to day cash flow

needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the

longer term cash flow needs.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and approval of

prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as through a

comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that

cash is available when needed.

The Group is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures

sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to

raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  

As at 31 March 2018, all of the Groups deposits were due to mature within 364 days.

The Group has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy

draws together prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of

interest rate movements. From this strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and

variable interest rate exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the

year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where economic

circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term

returns.

investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services

will rise

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk: The Group is exposed to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in interest

rates have a complex impact on the Group, depending upon how variable and fixed interest rates move across

differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following

effects:

No breaches of the counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Group does not expect any

losses from non performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits.
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Note 19: Financial Instruments TVCA

Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Loans and receivables 6,448 5,013 91,000 78,058 

-  -  4,940 5,812 

Total financial assets 6,448 5,013 95,940 83,870 

-  -  (5,151) (1,662)

Total financial liabilities -  -  (5,151) (1,662)

        

        

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

Mark to Model Valuation for Financial Instruments  

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Financial liabilities 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Bank Overdraft (2,648) (2,648) -  -  

Total financial liabilities (2,648) (2,648) -  -  

Loans and receivables

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Money Market Loans < 1 year 65,000 65,000 50,056 50,056 

Other Loans >1 year 6,448 6,448 5,013 5,013 

Cash on Deposit 26,000 26,000 28,002 28,002 

Debtors 4,940 4,940 5,812 5,812 

Total loans and receivables 102,388 102,388 88,883 88,883 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Available for sale assets and assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet at

their fair value. These fair values are based on public price quotations where there is an active market for the

instrument. The exceptions to this treatment are short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair

approximation of their value. 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Long Term Current

Financial assets carried at contract amounts

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but for which 

Fair Value disclosures are required)

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long term debtors and creditors are

carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of

the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

No early repayment or impairment is recognised;

Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the fair value is taken

to be the carrying amount or the billed amount.

As at 31st March 2018 the Authority held £102.3m financial assets and had financial liabilities of £2.6m. All the

financial assets are classed as Loans and Receivables and held with Notice Accounts. To provide a fair value which

provides a comparison to the carrying amount, we have used a financial model valuation provided by Arlingclose our

Treasury Managment Advisors. This valuation applies the Net Present Value approach, which provides an estimate of

the value of payments in the future in today's terms as at the balance sheet date. This is a widely accepted valuation

technique commonly used by the private sector. 
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Note 19: Financial Instruments TVCA

Key risks

The Authoritys activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; the key risks are:

        

        

        

        

Overall procedures for managing risks

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years limiting:

The Authoritys overall borrowing;

Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;

Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt;

Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and

selecting investment counterparties in compliance with Government guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the the start of the year to which they relate. These

items are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing

risk in relation to the Authoritys financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported after each year

and regular updates are provided to the Audit & Governance Committees.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authoritys

customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategies, which requires that deposits are not

made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch,

Moody's and Standard & Poors Credit Ratings Services. 

The Annual Investment Strategies also consider maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial

institution. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements

of the investment criteria outlined above. Additional selection criteria are also applied after this initial criteria is

applied.  Details of the Investment Strategy can be found on TVCA's website.

The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of

£72,000 cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the

principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities

to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authoritys deposits, but there

was no evidence at the 31 March 2018 that this was likely to crystallise. 

The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets,

based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current market

conditions. 

by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its financial

regulations/standing orders/constitution;

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority

liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make

payments

re-financing risk – the possibility that the Authority might be requiring to renew a financial instrument on maturity

at disadvantageous interest rates or terms

market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such

measures as interest rates and stock market movements

The Authoritys overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and are

structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out

through a legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations. These require the

Authority to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public

Services and investment guidance issued through the Act. Overall, these procedures require the Authority to manage

risk in the following ways:

by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;
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Note 19: Financial Instruments TVCA

               

Amount at     

31 March 

2018

Historical 

experience 

of default 

Adjustment 

for market 

conditions at 

31 March 

2018

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2018

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2017

£000s % % £000s £000s

A rated counterparties 53,000 0.06% 0.08% 42 21 

Local Authorities 35,000 0.06% 0.07% 25 -  

Debtors 4,940 0.10% 0.10% 5 -  

72 21 

•

        

        

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 258 301 

Impact on (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 258 301 

If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being

reversed.

Price Risk: The Authority, excluding the pension fund, does not invest in equity shares or marketable bonds.

Foreign Exchange Risk: The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and

therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury Management Strategy

draws together prudential and treasury indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of

interest rate movements. From this strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and

variable interest rate exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the

year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where economic

circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term

returns.

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk: The Authority is exposed to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements

in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority, depending upon how variable and fixed interest

rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest

rates would have the following effects:

investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services

will rise

investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances)

monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for day to day cash flow

needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the

longer term cash flow needs.

Refinancing and Maturity risk

The Authority maintains a significant investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are considered

against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Authority relates to managing the exposure to

replacing financial instruments as they mature. The approved treasury indicator limits placed on investments are the

key parameters used to address this risk. The approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks

and the central treasury team address the operational risks within the approved parameters.  This includes:

No breaches of the counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the Authority does not expect any

losses from non performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits.

Liquidity Risk

The Authority manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and approval

of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as through a

comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that

cash is available when needed.

The Authority is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which

ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be

unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  

As at 31 March 2018, all of the Authoritys deposits were due to mature within 364 days.
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Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (TVCA and Group)

Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (TVCA and Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services:

        Current service cost 715 366 

        Past service cost 15 -  

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest cost 40 30 

770 396 

        
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net 

interest expense)
(47) (787)

        
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 

assumptions
(1) 1,434 

        Actuarial gains and losses due to liability experience -  -  

        Actuarial gains and losses due to acquisitions -  -  

(48) 647 

Movement in Reserves Statement

        

Reversal of net charges made to the (Surplus) or Deficit for the 

Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance 

with the Code

(770) (396)

        Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 385 405

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the (Surplus) or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services

Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Group makes contributions towards the cost of

post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Group has a

commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future

entitlement.

The Group participates in The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Middlesbrough Council – this

is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Group and employees pay contributions into a fund,

calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees,

rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against

Group resources is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is

reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been

made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in

Reserves Statement during the year.

Local Government

 Pension Scheme

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for 

pensions in the year:

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

The amount included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account as "Re-measurements of the defined

benefit liability" is (£0.048m).
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Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Present value of defined benefit obligation (7,705) (6,715)

Fair value of assets 5,654 5,001 

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (2,051) (1,714)

Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (TVCA and Group)

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Opening fair value of scheme assets 5,001 3,578 

Interest income 136 130 

Remeasurement gains and (losses) 47 787 

Contributions from the employer 385 405 

Contributions from employees into the scheme 187 113 

Net increase from acquisitions -  -  

Benefits paid (102) (12)

Closing balance at 31 March 2018 5,654 5,001 

Reconciliation Of Present Value Of The Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

Opening balance at 1 April (6,715) (4,654)

Current service cost (715) (366)

Interest cost (176) (160)

Contributions by scheme participants (187) (113)

Actuarial gains and losses - financial assumptions 1 (1,434)

Actuarial gains and losses - liability experience -  -  

Benefits paid 102 12 

Net increase from acquisitions -  -  

Past service cost (15) 0 

Closing balance at 31 March 2018 (7,705) (6,715)

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

£000s % £000s %

Equity investments (Quoted) 4,518 79.9% 4,001 80.0%

Property (Quoted) 413 7.3% 345 6.9%

Government Bonds -  0.0% 10 0.2%

Corporate Bonds -  0.0% 10 0.2%

Cash 628 11.1% 560 11.2%

Other Investments 96 1.7% 75 1.5%

5,654 100% 5,001 100%

Local Government

Pension Scheme

Local Government

 Pension Scheme

Local Government

 Pension Scheme

Fair value of

scheme assets

2017/18

Fair value of

scheme assets

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is

as follows:

2016/17
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Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Note 20: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (TVCA and Group)

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

2017/18 2016/17

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

Men 22.9 22.8

Women 25.0 24.9

Longevity at 45 for future pensioners:

Men 25.1 25.0

Women 27.3 27.2

Other assumptions:

Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.1% 3.1%

Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.0% 2.0%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.0% 3.0%

Rate of increase in pensions 2.0% 2.0%

Rate of Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.0% 2.0%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.6% 2.6%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 80.0% 80.0%

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

Increase Base Figure Decrease

£000s £000s £000s

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year) 7,933 7,705 7,478 

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 7,784 7,705 7,627 

Rate of increase in pensions payment (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 7,825 7,705 7,586 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 7,510 7,705 7,905 

Impact on the Group’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The Group has

agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years. Funding levels

are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be carried out as at 31 March 2019.

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public Pensions Services Act

2013. Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales and the other main existing public

service schemes may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014 (or service after 31 March 2015

for other main existing public service pension schemes in England and Wales). The Act provides for scheme regulations

to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions

and other benefits to certain public servants. 

The Group anticipates to pay £0.395m contributions to the scheme in 2018/2019.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for TVCA scheme members is 25.7 years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for STDC scheme members is 37.4 years.

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the

pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both

the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been assessed by AON Hewitt, an

independent firm of actuaries; estimates for the Teesside Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the

scheme as at 31 March 2016.

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while

all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy

increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the

assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for

the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions

used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.
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2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

£000s £000s

£1 to £20,000 -  1 -  -  -  1 -  3 

£20,001 to £40,000 1 -  -  -  1 -  27 -  

£40,001 to £60,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

£60,001 to £80,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

£80,001 to £100,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

£100,001 to £150,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

£150,001 to £200,000 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total 1 1 -  -  1 1 27 3 

Note 22: Provisions (TVCA and Group)

Note 23: Contingent Liabilities (TVCA and Group)

Note 24: Post Balance Sheet Events (TVCA and Group)

The Group has no post balance sheet events to report.  (2016/17 Nil)

The Group has no contingent liabilities.  (2016/17 Nil)

Note 21: Termination Benefits (TVCA and Group)

Exit package cost band 

(including special 

payments)

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other 

departures agreed

Total number of exit 

packages by cost 

band

Total cost of exit 

packages in each 

band

The Group terminated the contract of one employee in 2017/18, incurring liabilities of £27k. The amount has been 

payable to an officer from the TVCA reflecting a service restructure.

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are 

set out in the table below:

The Group has not been required to establish any provisions in year. (2016/17 Nil)
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies (TVCA and Group)

• Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers the significant risks and rewards of

ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group. 

• Income from the provision of services is recognised when the Group can measure reliably the percentage of

completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date supplies

are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the balance sheet.  

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure

when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments is accounted for respectively as income on the basis of the effective interest rate

for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor

for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is

written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.  

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises TVCA's and Group transactions for the 2017/18 financial year and its position

at the year-end of 31 March 2018. They are required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and

Audit Regulations 2015, which those regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting

practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Group Accounting in the United Kingdom

2017/18, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   

The accounting convention adopted in the financial statements is principally historical cost, modified by the

revaluation of certain categories of non current assets and financial instruments. 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In

particular: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not

more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no more than three months or less

from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change

in value.   

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on

demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.  

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the

change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides

more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Group’s

financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated

otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had

always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and

comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable During Employment 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include such

benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an

expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Group. An accrual is made for the cost of

holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end

which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates

applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is

charged to (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves

Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies (TVCA and Group)

• The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Middlesbrough Borough Council. 

• The liabilities of the Teesside Pension Fund attributable to the Group are included in the Balance Sheet on an

actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in

relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee

turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative rate of return

on the Aon Hewitt GBP Central AA Curve. 

• The assets of the Teesside Pension Fund attributable to the Group are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair

value:

quoted securities  – current bid price 

unquoted securities  – professional estimate 

unitised securities – current bid price 

property  – market value. 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

Service cost comprising:

• current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – allocated in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked   

• past service cost : the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect relates

to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 

• net interest on the net defined benefit liability: i.e. net interest expense for the Group - the change during the

period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and

Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is

calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the

period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period - taking into account any changes in the net

defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

Remeasurements comprising:

• the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability -

charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• actuarial gains and losses: changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with

assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions –

charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an

expense.    

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the

amount payable by the Group to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated

according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are

appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and

replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but

unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial

impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than

as benefits are earned by employees.  

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end

of the reporting period and the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can

be identified: 

Contributions paid to the Teesside Pension Fund:

Post Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Group are members of one pension scheme: 

The schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees

worked for the Group and its predecessor. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies (TVCA and Group)

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Financial Statements

are adjusted to reflect such events 

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not

adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in

the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect. 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis 

• equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations. 

• the Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• the grants or contributions will be received. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the financial statements. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following principles: 

Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and donations

are recognised as due to the Group when there is reasonable assurance that: 

Amounts recognised as due to the Group are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that

the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are

required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be

returned to the transferor. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance

Sheet as receipts in advance. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant

service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non

ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified 

as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for

classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are

accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

Operating Leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an

expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a

straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-

free period at the commencement of the lease). 

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the Group's

arrangements for accountability and financial performace.

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their

amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset in the

Balance Sheet. For most of the loans that the Group has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance

Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies (TVCA and Group)

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in the

creation of a non current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Group has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from

existing capital resources, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the

Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged. 

VAT

VAT on income and expenditure is included only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HM Revenue and

Customs.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or constructive obligation that

probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Group may be involved in a court case that could eventually

result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement in the year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the

balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and

uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated

settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of

economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and

credited back to the relevant service. 

Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible obligation whose existence

will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Group. A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Group a possible asset whose

existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the Group. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed

in a note to the accounts. 

Reserves

The Group sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are

created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When

expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score

against the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that

there is no net charge against Group expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non current assets, financial instruments,

retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Group.
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Note 25: Statement of Accounting Policies (TVCA and Group)

        Level 1 - quoted prices

        Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

        Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures some of its non-financial assets, and some of its financial instruments at fair value at each

reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Group measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market participants would use when

pricing the asset or liability (assuming those market participants were acting in their economic best interest).

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Group takes into account a market participant's ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of relevant known data

and minimising the use of estimates or unknowns. this takes into account the three levels of categories for inputs to

valuations for fair value assets:

Page 40



Tees Valley Combined Authority (and Group) - Annual Financial Statements 2017/18

Responsibilities for the Annual Financial Statements

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Tees Valley Combined Authority Group is required to:

•      

•      

•      

The Chief Financial Officers Responsibilities

In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, the Chief Financial Officer has:

•      selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

•      made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

•      complied with the Local Authority Code of Practice.

The Chief Financial Officer has also:

•      kept accounting records which were up to date;

•      

Certification of the accounts by the Chief Financial Officer

J Gilhespie      Date: 31 May 2018

Director of Finance (TVCA and STDC)

  
J Gilhespie      Date: 31 July 2018

Director of Finance (TVCA and STDC)

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, I certify that by

signing this statement the Annual Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial

position of Tees Valley Combied Authority Group Accounts at the accounting date and its income and

expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Group,

that officer is the Chief Financial Officer;

manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard

its assets; 

approve the Annual Financial Statements by the date specified by the Secretary of State.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Groups Annual Financial Statements

in accordance with proper practice as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority

Accounting in Great Britain (the Code of Practice).

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements certified by the Director of

Finance on 31st May 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TEES 

VALLEY COMBINED AUTHORITY
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Appendix A

Glossary of Terms

Accruals

Amortised cost 

Capital Charge

Capital Expenditure

Consistency

Contingency

Depreciation

Effective interest method

Exceptional Items

Extraordinary Items

Fair Value

The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction,

less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the asset.

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money

is received or paid.

A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of non current assets used in the provision of a

service.

The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one

period to the next is the same.

The amount at which a financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, less

principal repayments and plus or minus any unamortised original premium or discount. International

Accounting Standard (IAS) 39 requires the amortised cost to be calculated using the effective interest

method. 

This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability, and of

allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate

in a financial instrument is the rate that exactly discounts the cash flows associated with the

instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.

Expenditure on the acquisition of a non current asset or expenditure designed to extend its useful life.

A condition which exists at the balance sheet date, where the outcome will be confirmed only on the

occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events.

The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a non

current asset, whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through technological or

other changes.

Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the

Authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give fair

presentation of the accounts.

Material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive from events or transactions that

fall outside the ordinary activities of the Authority and which are not expected to recur. They do not

include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period items, merely because they relate to a prior

period. 
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Appendix A

Glossary of Terms

Finance Lease

Going Concern

Government Grants

Inventories

Comprise the value of items held in the following categories:

a) goods or other assets purchased for resale;

b) consumable stores;

c) raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale;

d) products and services in intermediate stages of completion;

e) long term contract balances; and

f) finished goods.

Investments

Long Term Contracts

Net Book Value

Net Current Replacement Cost

Net Realisable Value

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of a non

operational asset), less any expenses incurred in realising the asset.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a non current asset to the

lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease

the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to

substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset.

A long term investment is an investment that is being held for use on a continuing basis in the

activities of the Authority. Investments should be so classified only where an intention to hold the

investment for the long term can clearly be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the

investor's ability to dispose of the investment. Investments which do not meet the above criteria are

classified as current assets.

The amount at which non current assets are included in the balance sheet i.e. the historical cost or

current value, less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing use

i.e. the costs of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current

condition of the existing asset.

A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a substantial asset or the

provision of a service (or a combination of assets or services which together constitute a single

project), where the time taken to substantially complete the contract is such that the contract activity

falls into different accounting periods. Some contracts with a shorter duration than one year should be

accounted for as long term contracts, if they are sufficiently material to the activity of the period.

Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national

or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an Authority in return for past or future

compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the Authority.

The concept that the Authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, in

particular that the revenue accounts and balance sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the

scale of operations.
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Appendix A

Glossary of Terms

Non Current Assets

Non Operational Assets

 

Operating Lease

A lease other than a finance lease.

Operational Assets

Post Balance Sheet Events

Prior Year Adjustments

Prudence

Usable Reserves

Unusable Reserves

Reserves that not available to spend; this category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised

gains and losses and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves

Statement line “Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.

Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet date and the

date on which the Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial officer.

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years, arising from changes in accounting policies or

from the correction of fundamental errors. They do not include normal recurring corrections or

adjustments of accounting estimates in prior years.

The concept that revenue is not anticipated, but is recognised only when realised, in the form either of

cash or of other assets, the ultimate cash realisation of which can be assessed with reasonable

certainty.

Amounts set aside to meet future costs, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves

and any statutory limitations on their use.

Non current assets held by a Authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of

services. Examples of non-operational assets are investment properties and assets that are surplus to

requirements, pending sale or redevelopment.

Non current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of

those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.

Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more

than one year.
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